
p.2 
Aug 3100 02:13p usda 202-720-8424 

UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE USDA 
OALJ/HCO

BEFORETHE SECRETARYOFAGRICULlURE 
znoo AUG -W P 3: 30 

Inre: ) AWA DocketNo. 98-0017 

LOKICLAN WOLF REFUGE, 
) 
) R~CEIVED 

INC., a New Hampshire ) 
Corporation; and ) 
G.FREDERIC KEATING, an ) 
individual, ) 

) 
Respondent. ) • ConsentDecision 

Thisproceeding was instituted undertheAnimal Welfare Act, lIS amended (7U.S.C.§ 2131 

~ sg.)(the "Act"),by a complaintfiled by the Administrator. Animal and Plant HealthInspection 

Service, United States Department of Agriculture, alleging that the respondents willfullyviolated 

the regulations and standards issuedpursuant to the Act (9 C.F.R § 1.1 ~ SQ..). This decisionis 

entered pursuant to the consent decision provisions of the Rules of Practice applicable to this 

proceeding (7 C.F.R. § 1.138). The respondents admit all of the allegations in the amended 

complaint. specifically admitthat theSecretarybasjurisdictionin this matter,waiveoralhearingand 

further procedure, and consent and agree, for the purpose of settlingthis proceeding and for such 

purpose only, to the entry of this decision. The complainant agreesto the entryofthis decision. 

Findings of Fact 

1. Respondent G. Frederic Keatingisanindividual whosemailingaddress isBox 1186, 

Conway, New Hampshire 03818. Mr. Keating is thepresidentand a directorof respondent Loki 

Clan Wolf Refuge, Inc., a New Hampshire corporation, whose mailing address is Box 1186, 

Conway. New Hampshire 03818. 

2. At all timesmentioned herein.saidrespondents wereoperating as exhibitors, as that 

term is defined in the Act and the Regulations. 
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3. Fromapproximately March 1995 to thepresent,respondentsG. FredericKeating and 

Loki ClanWolfRefuge,Inc.•haveexhibitedanimalsto thepublic,withouthavingobtaineda license 

to do so. 

4. Onoraboutthefollowingdates,respondents G.Frederic KeatingandLoki Clan Wolf 

Refuge, Inc., withouthaving obtaineda license, transported wolf-hybrid dogs for exhibitionat the 

locations listed below: 

March 2~ 1995 Gorham,New Hampshire 

July 22, 1995 Limerick, New Hampshire 

July 23, 1995 Limerick,New Hampshire 

May 1996 North Conway, New Hampshire 

May 1996 Tamworth, New Hampshire 

August 1996 Bartlett, New Hampshire 

April 12, 1997 North Conway, New Hampshire 

Apri113, 1997 North Conway, New Hampshire 

5. On April 30, June 11. and July 17, 1997, an inspectionof the respondents' facility 

revealed that therespondents willfully violatedsection2.40ofthe Regulations (9 C.F.R. § 2.40)by 

failing to establish and maintain a programofadequateveterinary care. 

6. . On April 30, June II, July 17 and July 31, 1997,and March 5, March 12,and May 

18.1998, the respondents failed to constructhousingfacilities for wolf-doghybridsso that theyare 

structurally sound, in good repairand protectthe animalsfrominjury, containthe animalssecurely 

and restrict other animals from entering. 

7. OnApril30,June 11,July 17and July31, 1997,the respondents failedto providefor 
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the regularand frequent collection,removaland disposal of animaland food waste. 

8. On April30,June 11,July 17andJuly31, 1997,and on March12,andMay18,1998, 

the respondents failed to provideoutdoorshelters for wolf-dog hybrids. 

9. On April 30, June 11, July 17 and July 31, 1997, and on March 12, 1998, the 

respondents kept wolf-dog hybrids on tethers in outdoor housing facilities that do not meet the 

requirements of section 3.4 ofthe Standards (9 C.~.R. § 3.4). 

10. On April 30, June 11, July 17, 1997,and March 12, 1998,the respondents failed to 

provideto wolf-dog hybrids food that is uncontaminated, wholesome andpalatable, and by failing 

to providefood in receptacles. 

11. On April 30, June 11, July 17, 1997, respondents failed to keep water receptacles 

cleanand sanitized. . 

12. OnApril 30, June 11,July 17, 1997,and May 18, 1998, the respondents failed to 

cleanand sanitizepens, runs and outdoorhousingareas,and to maintain the premises cleanand in 

good repair. 

13. OnJuly31, 1997, therespondents failed to maintainaprogramofadequate veterinary 

care. 

14. On March 12, 1998, the respondents failed to maintain a program of adequate 

veterinary care. 

15. OnApril 30, June 11, 1997, and May 18, 1998,the respondents failed toprovide for 

the regularandfrequent removalof water and to equiphousing facilities with drainage systems that 

areconstructed andoperatedsoas to rapidlyeliminateanimalwaste andwaterandallowtheanimals 

to staydry. 
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Conclusions ofLaw 

1. From approximately March 1995to thepresent, respondents violatedsection 4 ofthe 

Act (7 U.S.C. § 2134) andsection 2.1(a)ofthe Regulations (9 C.F.R. § 2.1(a» 

2. On or about March 2, July 22, and July 23, 1995, in May and August 1996, and on 

April12andApril 13,1997,respondents violatedsection4 ofthe Act (7 U.S.C.§ 2134)andsection 

2.1(a) ofthe Regulations (9 C.F.R. § 2.1(a». 

3. On April 30, June 11, and July 17, 1997,respondents violated section 2.40 of the 

Regulations (9 C.F.R. § 2.40). 

4. On April30, June 11,July 17 and July 31, 1997,and March S, March 12, and May 

18, 1998, the respondents violated section 2.100(8) of the Regulations (9 C.F.R. § 2.1oo(a», and 

section 3.1(a)of the Standards(9 C.F.R. § 3.1(a». 

5. On April30. June 11,July 17 and July 31, 1997, the respondents willfullyviolated 

section 2.100(a) ofthe Regulations (9 C.F.R. § 2.100(a», and section 3.1(t) of the Standards (9 

C.F.R. § 3.1(£». 

6. OnApril30.June I I, July 17andJuly31,1991,andon March 12,and May18,1998, 

therespondentsviolatedsection2.100(a)oftheRegulations(9C.F.R.§2.100(a».andsection3.4(b) 

of theStandards (9 C.F.R. § 3.4(b». 

1. On April 30, JW1e 11, July 17 and July 31, 1997, and on March 12, 1998, the 

respondents violatedsection2.1 OO(a) ofthe Regulations (9C.F.R.§ 2.1OO(a», andsection3.6(c)(2) 

of the Standards (9 C.F.R. § 3.6(c)(2». 

8. On April 30, June 11,July 11, 1997,and March 12, 1998,the respondents violated 

section2.100(a)ofthe Regulations (9 C.F.R.§ 2.100(a», andsection3.9 oftheStandards (9 C.f.R. 

http:section3.1(a)oftheStandards(9C.F.R


p.6 
Au~ 31 00 02:15p usda 202-720-8424 

5 

§ 3.9). 

9. On April 30, June 11, July 17, 1997. the respondentshad willfully violatedsection 

2.100(8) of the Regulations (9 C.F.R. § 2.100(a», and section 3.10 of the Standards (9 C.F.R. § 

3.10). 

10. On April 30, June 11, July 17. 1997, and May 18, 1998, the respondents violated 

section2.100(a)of theRegulations(9 C.F.R. §2.l~0(a», and section3.11 of theStandards(9 C.F.R. 

§ 3.11). 

11. On July 31, 1997, the respondents violatedsection2.40ofthe Regulations (9 C.F.R. 

§ 2.40). 

12. On March 12. 1998, the respondents violated section 2.40 of the Regulations (9 

C.F.R § 2.40). 

13. On April 30, JW1e 11, 1997, and May 18, 1998, the respondents violated section 

2.100(a) of the Regulations (9 C.F.R. § 2.100(a», and section 3.l{f) of the Standards (9 C.F.R. § 

3.l{f). 

14. Respondents having adinitted. the allegations inthecomplaintsetforthinthefindings 

of factandconclusionsoflaw above,andthe partieshavingagreedto theentryof this decision, such 

decision will be entered. 

Order 

1. Respondents agreenotto engagein anyactivity forwhicha licenseunderthe Animal 

Welfare Act is requiredwithouthaving obtained a license. 

2. Respondents arejointlyandseverallyassessed a civilpenaltyofSl l,200.whichshall 

be paid as follows: 

http:andsection3.11
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Respondents shallapply$5,600toward physical improvements (beyond normal care . 

and maintenance) at theanimal facilities that are the subject of AWA DocketNo. 98-0017, and 

whichimprovements shall be completed no later than August 15,2001. Respondents shall make 

available tothecomplainant, uponrequest, written documentationevidencing thecompletionofsuch 

physical improvements, and the expenditure ofsaid $5.600towardsuchimprovements; and 

Respondents sballpay the ~ $5,600civilpenalty, on or before August15, 

2001, bycertifiedcheckor moneyordermadepayable to the Treasurer of the United States. 

3. Respondent, theiragentsandemployees, successors IU1d assigns, directly or through 

anycorporate or otherdevice,shall ceaseand desist fromviolating theActandthe Regulations and 

Standards. 
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The provisions of this order shall become effective on August 1S, 2000. Copies of this 

decision shall be served uponthe parties. 

LOKI CLAN WOLF REFUGE, INC. 
a New Hampshirecorporation, 
Respondent 

By ---
Its 5~t.A\(.~~f'(~ 

~ 
Attorney for Complainant 

• G. Frederic Keating 
Respondent 

Done~~~.C. s.: 
thiS~daYO~.2000 

Dorothea A. Baker 
Administrative Law Judge 

, 




